WASHOE COUNTY @
HEALTH DISTRICT

ENHANCING QUALITY OF LIFE Public Health

Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board
Meeting Minutes

Members Wednesday, December 20, 2017
Christopher Romm 9:00 a.m.
Sergio Guzman

Michael Chaump

David DeMars Washoe County Administration Complex, Building B
J.P. Pinocchio Health District South Conference Room
George Heinemann 1001 East Ninth Street
Christopher Thompson Reno, NV

1. *Roll Call and Determination of Quorum

Chair DeMars called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.
The following members and staff were present:
Members present: David DeMars, Chair
Christopher Romm
George Heinemann
Christopher Thompson
Sergio Guzman (arrived 9:23 a.m.)

Members absent: J.P. Pinocchio
Michael Chaump

Ms. Rogers verified a quorum was present

Staff present: Chad Westom, Environmental Health Division Director
Dave McNinch, Environmental Health Specialist Supervisor
Amber English, Senior Environmental Health Specialist

2. *Pledge of Allegiance
Those present pledged allegiance to the flag.
3. *Public Comment
As there was no one wishing to speak, Chair DeMars closed the public comment period.
4. Approval of Agenda
December 20, 2017
Chair DeMars moved to approve the agenda for the December 20, 2017, Food Protection

Post Office Box 11130, Reno, NV 89520-0027 — 1001 E. Ninth St., Reno, NV 89512
Telephone: 775.328.2415 — Fax: 775.328.3752

www.washoecounty.us/health/



Hearing and Advisory Board meeting. Mr. Romm seconded the motion which was approved
four in favor and none against.

5. Staff’s Recommendation for Approval of Variance Case No. 1-17FP Pignic Pub & Patio
Application for Variance to Sections 200.055(B)(Outdoor food establishment, food
preparation by consumer), 200.055(E) )(Outdoor food establishment, food preparation
by consumer), and 060.205(A)(Food equipment, certification and classification) of the
Regulations of the Washoe County District Board of Health Governing Food
Establishments.

Staff Representative: Chad Westom

Mr. Westom stated that Board Member’s packets contained the request for variance from
Pignic Pub & Patio, staff recommendations, and documentation outlining the circumstances
leading to this request for variance.

Mr. Westom informed that the Health District has been working with Pignic to find a
resolution to issues that would allow them to operate with their unique business model. He
informed that the Health District has concerns over a number of compliance issues outside of
those Pignic has requested variance from, and because of those, the Health District has taken
a neutral stance on their requests and are seeking direction from the Food Protection Hearing
and Advisory Board (FPHAB).

Mr. Romm inquired of Environmental Health staff how many hand washing sinks and
signs were on site at Pignic for the public’s use. Mr. McNinch informed that Pignic does
have a Food Establishment permit and have an area for food preparation in the basement, as
well as the patio grill area which is the portion of their restaurant that they are requesting the
variance for.

Ms. English informed that there are four stations available for hand washing, and each
include burners, a small refrigerator and multiple grills in the area.

Chair DeMars inquired of the owners what the original concept for Pignic’s business
model was. Mr. Goldhammer, co-owner of Pignic Pub & Patio, informed their concept was
presented informally in 2013 to Health District staff and then in a more formal fashion during
the permitting process in 2014. Mr. Goldhammer stated that the concept from 2014-2017 has
been that of standard pub operation with a community grill yard. The concept included that
individuals or groups could bring in their own groceries, including meat to grill, either as a
planned event or for spur-of-the-moment use. Patrons were invited to either bring their own
cooler or use the on-site refrigeration storage. Mr. Goldhammer informed that patrons could
then prepare food to be consumed within their party, much like any public park equipped
with an outdoor grill area. He informed that this is how the Pub has operated for the past
three years. He detailed the various types of equipment available for public use, listed the
contents of the grill box that guests are provided, and informed there are plates, silverware,
communal spices and barbeque sauces for their use. Chair DeMars inquired if this was the
concept presented to the Health District, and Mr. Goldhammer confirmed that it was, both
informally and again during the formal permitting process in 2014. Mr. Goldhammer
informed that Pignic does carry a small selection of products to sell to patrons, but that their
concept has never been designed to carry a large inventory or be the sole supplier of food for
patrons.

Chair DeMars inquired if there were Certified Food Protection Managers (CFPM)
employed by Pignic and on site at all times. Mr. Goldhammer stated that there are and that
they are on site at all times, and Pignic’s revised business plan includes having more staff
certified.

Mr. Romm inquired if staff would assist a guest with grilling should they be requested to.

December 20, 2017 Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 10



Mr. Goldhammer stated that the staff’s function is provide guidance to patrons and to provide
supplies as needed, but not actually do grilling for the guest. If an event is planned and a
Certified Grill Master is requested, Pignic provides that option at a charge. Mr. Romm
inquired how a guest’s spur-of-the-moment request for staff to grill for them would be
handled. Mr. Goldhammer informed the guest would be denied that service.

Mr. Clark, representing Pignic Pub & Patio, informed that Pignic staff educates the public
as to safe food handling practices, that the grill basket includes a thermometer for patron’s
use to help prevent undercooked meats being consumed, and that food is only consumed
within a party.

Mr. Clark stated that each guest signs a waiver and assumes personal responsibility for
safe preparation of the food they will consume. Chair DeMars inquired if the waiver
included in the packet had been in place since opening. Mr. Goldhammer informed that, in
working with the Washoe County Health District Supervisors, there had been an addendum
included that more clearly outlines safety procedures, cooking temperatures, etc. He stated
that the waiver had been more of a verbal contract prior to creating the waiver included in the
packets.

Mr. Romm inquired how many employees they have monitoring guests. Mr.
Goldhammer stated it was dependent on how busy Pignic was on a given day, but that there
was always one person on site although they were not always in the grilling yard. On busier
days, there could be two to four employees available to supervise grilling.

Mr. Romm inquired if there was a checklist in use to verify stations were cleaned
between use and customers were informed of procedures. Mr. Goldhammer informed there
were opening and closing procedures observed by staff, and that staff received training to
instruct patrons on safe grilling methods. He stated that staff would review grill operation
and assure the grill is up to temperature for the customer. Mr. Goldhammer informed there is
no physical check list in use, but that he was in full support of the waiver being more
complete.

Mr. Romm inquired how many Certified Food Protection Managers are on staff. He
noted that there had been inspections when there was not one CFPM on site. Mr.
Goldhammer informed that they have four on staff, but due to turnover, it might have caused
the instance that there were none available. He stated that is something they are willing to
address immediately.

FPHAB Member Mr. Guzman arrived at 9:23 a.m.

Mr. Thompson inquired of the three sections of the regulations listed for variance that
two appear to be the same. Mr. McNinch informed the Board that there are several chapters
in the regulations; one of those is the Outdoor Food Establishment chapter which is a new
section of the regulations implemented in 2015 during the revision of the Regulations of the
Washoe County District Board of Health Governing Food Establishments. He informed this
chapter was intended to fill a gap that existed between Temporary Foods and Permanent
“brick and mortar” type facilities and was designed to provide more latitude than regulations
had previously allowed. Mr. McNinch informed that the Outdoor Food Establishment
component is dependent on there being an associated permitted facility on the same site that
meets brick and mortar requirements. He informed that Section 200.055(B) allows that
consumers may be permitted to cook, baste and season while cooking food items for their
own personal consumption provided the consumer uses only food items, utensils and
equipment provided from the supporting food establishment or outdoor food establishment.
He stated that this is the approved source issue that Pignic is requesting variance from. Mr.
McNinch informed that Section 200.055(E) states that consumers may be permitted to cook,

December 20, 2017 Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 10



baste and season while cooking food items for their own personal consumption provided the
consumer is not cooking, basting or seasoning while cooking food items for anyone’s
consumption but their own. This section refers to the concept of a “potluck” which is not
acceptable under current regulations. Mr. McNinch stated the Health District is requesting
direction from the Board for the variance Pignic seeks from this regulation. Mr. McNinch
stressed that the Health District does not consider loose association as a group of people, and
so need to have the term “group” clearly defined in order to enforce this regulation
appropriately. He stated that a food establishment is held to a higher standard, that current
law supports that stance and the public expects to be protected. The variance requested
would allow a close group of persons who arrive to dine together be allowed to do so, but
would not allow sharing of food between groups.

Mr. Guzman opined that Mr. McNinch’s explanation of the Sections made sense, as well
as the requirement that food establishments are held to a higher standard.

Mr. Romm inquired how many times per year is Pignic being inspected. Mr. McNinch
informed that state law requires one inspection per year, but the Health District will inspect
as many times as necessary in order to insure compliance. He stated that there are
progressive levels of enforcement that will ensure the Health District’s concerns have been
met.

Mr. Romm inquired of Pignic representatives if persons can bring in food and also
purchase food from Pignic, and if that was tracked. Mr. Goldhammer informed that it is
possible to both bring in food and buy it from their establishment.

Mr. Goldhammer wished to clarify that previous to this current situation, the outside grill
area was not permitted and was treated as a public space with no requirement that he was
aware of for there to be Certified Food Protection Managers available to monitor the area.
He noted that it was allowed to operate for two years in this fashion even after the revision of
the regulations in 2015. He opined that Pignic wasn’t being neglectful or doing anything
wrong because it wasn’t a permitted area of their establishment.

Mr. Goldhammer also wished to state for the record that, regarding the discussion of
public expectations, he opined that in Pignic’s three years of operation they have adequately
demonstrated what the public expectation is. He opined that the public’s expectation is to be
responsible for their own health and safety and to not be regulated on what they can cook,
how they can eat it and where they can eat it.

Mr. Clark thanked the new Board Members for their service which allowed this meeting
to take place. He informed that in his meeting earlier in the year with the District Health
Officer and staff, it was decided that Pignic’s operation fit better within the new Outdoor
Food Establishment Chapter. Pignic was directed to apply for the new permit standard and
simultaneously apply for the variance from the sections that Mr. McNinch reviewed to be
able to operate as they had been.

Mr. Clark stated that Pignic owners and staff have been working diligently to assure the
Operations Plan provides clear guidelines for staff responsibilities to assure they can
maintain compliance. He stated that one of the biggest issues had been the definition of an
approved food source, and that one condition in the variance requires food brought on to the
property by a consumer to be in its original packaging with the original receipt. Mr. Clark
expressed concern that the requirement of the receipt may hamper their business and that
they would prefer not to have that condition be enforced; opining that the original packaging
had sufficient information to verify the food had been purchased at an approved source. He
stated that the Operations Plan will be the guideline for their operation to maintain
compliance with regulations and conditions of the variance. He opined that Pignic and the
Health District staff have reached an agreement that Pignic can and will comply with.

December 20, 2017 Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 10



Mr. Thompson noted the eight recommendations that the Health District has listed as
required to allow the variance to be granted, and that Pignic seems to agree with all but the
requirement of the receipt for food. Mr. Clark agreed with his assessment, but that Pignic
would be willing to comply if there were no latitude given on that point.

Mr. Romm inquired of Health District staff if a picture of the receipt would suffice. Mr.
Clark indicated that option had been discussed, but noted that the Food Protection Hearing
and Advisory Board’s decision would then be reviewed by the District Health Officer for
final determination whether to allow the variance.

Mr. Goldhammer stated that Pignic does not want to have conditions included as
requirements for the variance to be approved that would be difficult to comply with, and that
their goal is to be in compliance one hundred percent of the time. He expressed hope that the
receipt requirement could be discussed further. He informed that Pignic’s stance on this
issue is that the original packaging of a product has sufficient information to verify its source.

Mr. Westom stated that the Health District would consider altering the condition of the
consumer providing a receipt for food brought into Pignic to that of the consumer providing a
picture of the receipt.

Mr. Westom brought the Board’s attention to the packet they had been provided detailing
compliance issues and inquired if each of them had reviewed in in depth. He expressed
concerns of the many compliance issues, and stressed that the Health District’s priority is to
ensure that Pignic operates safely and follows their Operations Plan, but moreover, that the
Health District is obligated to enforce laws and regulations and will do so. He stated that he
would be happy to answer any questions the Board may have.

Mr. Thompson made note of Pignic’s statement earlier of the four Certified Food
Protection Managers they have on staff. He inquired of Mr. Westom if the number of
CFPMs in an organization would equate to less compliance issues. Mr. Westom replied that
if CFPMs are on staff and present to monitor operations it could help ensure compliance and
opined it may help Pignic, however, this point is a non-issue in his professional opinion
because CFPMs have not been present at Pignic during Health District visits. Mr. Westom
expressed that he could not see evidence of trained CFPMs employed by Pignic and that
there was no benefit if they were not available to monitor operations.

Mr. DeMars expressed his concern for the obstacles and challenges that exist and
inquired how Pignic’s compliance would be enforced. Mr. Westom stated that the Health
District has options available for progressive enforcement. He informed that when violations
are found at an establishment that reports are issued outlining the compliance issues, the
establishment has to respond, there will be follow up inspection(s) with fees charged for
those inspections, and permits can be suspended. He noted that Pignic’s food service permit
was currently suspended, and stated suspension will remain in place until the Health District
is satisfied that the customers and public at large are protected. He informed that there are
also citations that can be issued by the Health District, and that an establishment’s permit can
be revoked for non-compliance. Mr. Westom informed that each step has the possibility of a
hearing.

Mr. Westom stated that the he and the Health District take their jobs very seriously and
want to make sure that no one is harmed through unnecessary illness or death with an
organization that is non-compliant and unwilling to work with the Health District to maintain
compliance.

Mr. Romm stated that Pignic Pub & Patio are trailblazers in this community and
informed that many of the Board Members have experienced some of what they are going
through now, explaining the reason for the many questions asked of them. He inquired how
many groups Pignic could accommodate at a time. Mr. Goldhammer informed there are six

December 20, 2017 Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 10



cooking stations, so a maximum of six groups could be cooking at once. On a busy night,
Mr. Romm inquired what staff would be present. Mr. Goldhammer informed there would be
three bar backs/grill yard attendants, two bar tenders and there would usually be an employee
acting as a host.

Mr. Clark stated that, in his research, Pignic is breaking new ground by being the only
business of its type nationwide, and that it is Pignic’s intent to comply once guidelines are
set. Mr. DeMars stated his concern was with Pignic’s history of noncompliance. Mr.
Goldhammer stated that the grill yard area of Pignic was not a permitted food establishment
and so, to his knowledge, it was not required to have employees monitoring the grill yard
since its inception. He stated that if food was being cooked for guests there was a licensed
person preparing the food. He stated that he’d never been informed by Health District staff
that it was required to have licensed personnel monitoring the grill yard at all times.

Mr. Goldhammer informed the Board that if they looked at Pignic’s history of violations
from 2014-2016, he didn’t believe they would see compliance issues. He stated there is a
spike in compliance issues is in 2017 over events held at Pignic in relation to what constitutes
a group. He opined that a group created on Facebook should be allowed to be considered a
group for their purposes and so should be able to share food. Mr. Thompson inquired if the
attendees of this group bought food into Pignic or if it was cooked onsite for them. Mr.
Goldhammer informed that their customers did bring in food and food was also cooked
onsite. Mr. Thompson opined that the point the Health District would have found fault with
was that people were cooking in an unregulated situation.

Mr. Goldhammer stated that, although he did not agree with the Health District, Pignic
stopped the potluck and provided free pizza. He informed that this incident precipitated the
many visits and noncompliance findings since. Mr. Goldhammer opined that many
restaurants are found to have one or two compliance issues in any inspection by the Health
District. He stated that he believed that Pignic had only had one or two minor issues found in
previous inspections that were corrected immediately or corrected by the return visit. Mr.
Goldhammer informed that the inspection involving the basement resulted in major
compliance issues found, but that the situation was rectified quickly with an investment of
between seven and eight thousand dollars.

Mr. Romm inquired if gloves for food handling are included in the grill kit for customer
use. Mr. Goldhammer informed that there are gloves next to other grilling supplies inside,
but that they are not in the basket. Mr. Romm inquired if customers use the gloves and are
they encouraged to do so by staff. Mr. Goldhammer stated that he would encourage
customers to use the gloves and that the waiver could be adjusted to include the suggestion
that they do.

Mr. DeMars inquired if Mr. Goldhammer owned another food establishment. Mr.
Goldhammer stated that he is part owner in two Noble Pie Parlors, one located in downtown
and the other in midtown.

Ms. Admirand asked the Board to ask for Public Comment prior to their beginning
deliberation.

As there was no one wishing to speak, Chair DeMars closed the public comment
period.

Ms. Admirand informed that the next step would be Board discussion and directed them
to have that discussion in public.

Chair DeMars opined that the whole of the Board wanted to see Pignic Pub & Patio
succeed, but they also want the establishment to adhere to strict safe food handling practices.
Mr. Guzman stated it was clear to him that the most important task for the Board is to

December 20, 2017 Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 10



uphold laws to protect the public. He stated that he’d read the entire report and saw there
were many sanitation issues at Pignic, but opined these could be corrected fairly easily.
Regarding the four Certified Food Protection Managers that were said to be on Pignic’s staff,
Mr. Guzman stated that practices they are trained in must be applied in the operation of the
business for it to benefit the public’s safety. He encouraged Pignic to employ the use of a
simple checklist to verify that grilling stations are safe for each new group to use.

Mr. Romm agreed with Mr. Guzman’s suggestion that Pignic use a checklist as part of
their Standard Operating Procedures to improve sanitation levels and to provide a document
to refer to in the event of an issue.

Mr. Goldhammer stated the Standard Operating Procedure developed in collaboration
with the Health District and Pignic would act as a checklist and training guide for staff, and
could be laminated for staff use. Mr. Romm inquired if this checklist could be added to the
waiver that customers sign.

Mr. McNinch stated the waiver is not required by the Health District nor is it for the
purpose of protecting public safety, but is a waiver of liability for Pignic’s protection. Mr.
McNinch informed that Pignic was receptive to Health District suggestions for information to
include in the waiver to raise public awareness.

Mr. Goldhammer stated that Pignic is aware of that distinction, but what Pignic wants to
accomplish with the waiver is to transfer responsibility to the consumer for the inspection of
their grill area.

Mr. Romm reiterated that staff should have a simple checklist to ensure that all steps to
prepare a grill area are complete before it is used, and that this list be saved as documentation
in the event of any issues that may arise.

Mr. Goldhammer agreed that a checklist could be put into place for staff to use.

Mr. Thompson inquired that, when a guest signs the waiver, is it taken from them right
away, his point being that safe cooking temperatures are included on the waiver. Mr.
Goldhammer stated that was correct, and physical copies are kept. Mr. Thompson inquired if
cooking temperatures were included in the grill basket, and Mr. Goldhammer informed
Pignic has been directed by the Health District to have that information posted at the grills.

Mr. Heinemann suggested that the Certified Food Protection Manager sign off on the
waiver, as well.

Mr. DeMars noted that the requirement for original packaging and receipt would prevent
consumers brining in meats they had marinated. Mr. Goldhammer agreed, and that limiting
the ways in which the consumer could enjoy their food was a concern for Pignic. He stated
that consumers marinating meats at home would not be allowed as the variance for
regulations is written.

Mr. Guzman inquired how it would be possible to enforce temperature control when they
bring product from home. Mr. Goldhammer stated it was not possible to ensure there had not
been temperature abuse, and understands Pignic is a food establishment and is governed by
strict regulations; however, he opined that customers should take personal responsibility for
their own safety. He stated that Pignic would not be able to police 100% of consumer
activity, and at some point it would have to make the distinction that the guest has some sort
of personal responsibility.

Mr. Thompson opined the Health District’s concern is with the potluck situation, in that
the waiver does not cover the instance of one customer cooking for another. Mr.
Goldhammer stated he understands the limit of sharing food only within the immediate party,
and stressed that those members in the immediate party as adults have a responsibility to act
in their own best interests. He opined it is similar to grilling in an unsupervised park. Mr.
Romm stated that the difference between Pignic and a public park is that an instance of a

December 20, 2017 Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 10



customer becoming ill from food eaten at Pignic would reflect badly on his establishment.
Mr. Goldhammer informed that there had not been an instance of illness associated with
Pignic since it opened.

Mr. Romm inquired if customers bring in marinated meats to cook at Pignic. Mr.
Goldhammer informed that they did bring in marinated foods frequently.

Regarding a question about food temperature control, Mr. Westom detailed the Health
District’s recommended conditions contained in the staff report that would address those
concerns, should the Board support the waiver of regulations for Pignic. He noted that the
District Health Officer, Mr. Dick, would then review the Board’s decision to decide if he
would be in agreement with their decision.

Mr. Westom cited other entities that allowed customers to purchase proteins from the
establishment to cook for themselves and consume the food after preparing it on the provided
commercial grade equipment. He informed that these are allowed functions for a food
establishment without variance from existing regulations. He stated that this would not
resolve the marinated meat issue, but inquired if it would be an option for Pignic to supply a
marinated meat option for purchase by the consumer.

Mr. DeMars inquired if Pignic had considered this as a plan of operation. Mr.
Goldhammer stated that it had been considered, but discarded due to the lack of refrigerated
storage for food items. He stated that the concept of an outdoor grill yard was discussed with
the Health District in 2013 and approved in 2014. In 2015 when regulations changed, he
stated that the Health District continued to support their concept through October of 2017.
Mr. Goldhammer stated that Pignic based an entire business concept upon that support. He
stated that it would be a hardship to change their business model after functioning within
their plan for the past three years, because that is what their clientele has come to expect. He
opined that they might not have gone into business at all if that was their option for a
business model, and that approximately 90% of their guests bring in their own protein to
grill.

Mr. Thompson opined that there is not enough of Pignic’s staff that are Certified Food
Protection Managers or sufficient supervision in the grill yard on a daily basis, but noted that
there has been no reported illness since their opening. He also stated that customers should
not bring in food prepared in their own kitchen because of restaurant regulations put in place
for the safety of the public. He opined a picture of the original receipt would be sufficient
with a photo of the product in its original packaging to upload and saved for a determined
length of time.

Mr. Goldhammer stated they have maintained the condition of the basement to its post
inspection/renovation condition, have been diligent in checking the dishwasher to assure it to
be in good working order and sanitization procedures are implemented as they should be.

Mr. Romm inquired if Pignic sells marinated meats. Mr. Goldhammer stated that they
just carry whole muscle meats due to previous attempts at carrying stock resulting in food
waste.

Mr. Thompson asked if customers would be able to bring in meat and marinade from an
approved source and Pignic staff marinade it onsite for the customer. Mr. Goldhammer
stated it might be a solution, but not one that had been discussed. Mr. Romm opined this to
be problematic with food being brought in and then handled by the restaurant employees.

Mr. Westom stated that meat could be brought to Pignic in original packaging from an
approved source and be marinated by the consumer with product provided by Pignic, but
would not support marinade brought in by the consumer unless it was prepackaged.

Mr. Goldhammer stated that Pignic would be willing to concede having marinated foods
due to the complexity of the regulations involved.

December 20, 2017 Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 10



Mr. Romm inquired if a UL Listed tabletop marinater could be used.

Mr. McNinch stated that the Health District would be in agreement with this equipment
being provided for use and persons bringing in ingredients to make a marinade, as long as the
ingredients are from an approved source and proper food handling takes place.

Mr. Romm inquired the percentage of guests that bring marinated product to Pignic. Mr.
Goldhammer stated approximately 25-30%, but reiterated that Pignic is willing to move forth
with the process and remove the concept of marinated meats from the equation for now,
possibly to revisit the subject in the future.

Mr. Romm inquired of Health District staff if it would approve pre-marinated meats
purchased from an approved source to be brought in to Pignic for grilling and Mr. McNinch
confirmed that it would be acceptable.

Mr. McNinch stressed that Pignic having Certified Food Protection Managers on site and
performing in that capacity are a critical condition for the Health District’s agreement to this
request for variance. He cited differences of opinion highlighted in these proceedings
between the Health District and Pignic, but stressed that the Health District’s requirements
for food safety are not negotiable. He informed that the Health District has gone through a
very extensive process to assist Pignic develop an Operational Plan to allow them to operate
within parameters designed to protect the public, and that it will not change the Health
District’s enforcement actions.

Mr. McNinch stated the Health District requests the Food Protection Hearing and
Advisory Board act strongly to enforce this agreement in support of the Health District, and
know that the Health District intends to strictly enforce the regulations. He stated that
whether this business model can work will be up to Pignic, and requested the Board to
consider this in their deliberations.

Mr. Thompson opined that condition # 3 could be amended to change the requirement to
a photographic image of the receipt be required versus the original receipt, and that the
record include a picture of the waiver. Mr. Romm agreed.

Chair DeMars moved to approve Variance Case No. 1-17FP Pignic Pub & Patio
Application for Variance to Sections 200.055(B)(Outdoor food establishment, food
preparation by consumer), 200.055(E) )(Outdoor food establishment, food preparation
by consumer), and 060.205(A)(Food equipment, certification and classification) of the
Regulations of the Washoe County District Board of Health Governing Food
Establishments, with amendment to condition #3 to accept a photograph of the receipt
instead of requiring the original receipt. Mr. Romm seconded the motion which carried
five in favor and none against.

Mr. Thompson directed Pignic Pub & Patio to improve their utilization of Certified Food
Protection Managers.

Mr. McNinch stated for the record that the Board’s recommendation will go to the
District Health Officer for consideration and his final decision whether or not to approve the
variance.

6. *Board Comment

7. *Public Comment
Any person is invited to speak on any item on or off the agenda during this period. Action
may not be taken on any matter raised during this public comment period until the matter is
specifically listed on an agenda as an action item.

December 20, 2017 Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board Meeting Minutes Page 9 of 10



8. Adjournment

Mr. Romm moved to adjourn the meeting at 10:40 a.m. Mr. Thompson seconded the
motion which was approved five in favor and none against.

Possible Changes to Agenda Order and Timing. Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, combined with other items,
withdrawn from the agenda, moved to the agenda of another later meeting; moved to or from the Consent section, or they may
be voted on in a block. Items with a specific time designation will not be heard prior to the stated time, but may be heard later.
Items listed in the Consent section of the agenda are voted on as a block and will not be read or considered separately unless
withdrawn from the Consent agenda.

Special Accommodations. The Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board Meetings are accessible to the disabled. Disabled
members of the public who require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested to notify Administrative
Health Services in writing at the Washoe County Health District, PO Box 1130, Reno, NV 89520-0027, or by calling
775.328.2416, 24 hours prior to the meeting.

Public Comment. During the “Public Comment” items, anyone may speak pertaining to any matter either on or off the agenda,
to include items to be heard on consent. For the remainder of the agenda, public comment will only be heard during items that
are not marked with an asterisk (*). Any public comment for hearing items will be heard before action is taken on the item and
must be about the specific item being considered by the Board. In order to speak during any public comment, each speaker must
fill out a “Request to Speak” form and/or submit comments for the record to the Recording Secretary. Public comment for
individual agenda items is limited as follows: three minutes for individual speakers.

Response to Public Comment. The Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board can deliberate or take action only if a matter
has been listed on an agenda properly posted prior to the meeting. During the public comment period, speakers may address
matters listed or not listed on the published agenda. The Open Meeting Law does not expressly prohibit responses to public
comments by the Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board. However, responses from the Board members to unlisted public
comment topics could become deliberation on a matter without notice to the public. On the advice of legal counsel and to ensure
the public has notice of all matters the Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board will consider, Board members may choose
not to respond to public comments, except to correct factual inaccuracies, ask for Health District Staff action or to ask that a
matter be listed on a future agenda. The Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board may do this either during the public
comment item or during the following item: “Board Comments — Limited to Announcement or Issues for future Agendas.”

Posting of Agenda; Location of Website.
Pursuant to NRS 241.020, Notice of this meeting was posted at the following locations:

Washoe County Health District, 1001 E. 9th St., Reno, NV

Reno City Hall, 1 E. 1st St., Reno, NV

Sparks City Hall, 431 Prater Way, Sparks, NV

Washoe County Administration Building, 1001 E. 9th St, Reno, NV
Downtown Reno Library, 301 S. Center St., Reno, NV

Washoe County Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health
State of Nevada Website: https://notice.nv.gov

How to Get Copies of Agenda and Support Materials. Supporting materials are available to the public at the Washoe County
Health District located at 1001 E. 9™ Street, in Reno, Nevada. Ms. Laura Rogers, Administrative Secretary to the District Board
of Health is the person designated by the Washoe County District Board of Health to respond to requests for supporting
materials. Ms. Rogers is located at the Washoe County Health District and may be reached by telephone at (775) 328-2415 or by
email at lrogers@washoecounty.us. Supporting materials are also available at the Washoe County Health District Website
www.washoecounty.us/health pursuant to the requirements of NRS 241.020.

December 20, 2017 Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board Meeting Minutes Page 10 of 10


http://www.washoecounty.us/health
https://notice.nv.gov/
mailto:lrogers@washoecounty.us
http://www.washoecounty.us/health

	3. *Public Comment

